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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Background

Clearfield, Inc. (“Clearfield” or the “Company”jormerly APA Enterprises, Inc., is a Minnesota argiion which was founded in 1979. (
corporate headquarters is located at 5480 Nathame Lislorth, Suite 120, Plymouth, MN 55442 and ourpooate website
www.clearfieldconnection.com. The information aghle on our website is not part of this Report. YYam access, free of charge, our fili
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, inoeéur annual report on Form 10-K, our quartedparts on Form 1@, current repor
on Form 8-K and any other amendments to those tegbrough a link at our website, or at the Consinis's website at www.sec.gov

Description of Business

Clearfield, Inc. manufactures, markets, and sellscommunications equipment. The Company providasta of modular, highlgonfigurabli
passive connectivity solutions to telecommunicaisarvice providers, as well as commercial andstrdu original equipment manufactur
(“OEMSs™). The Company has successfully establisieelf as a valuedded supplier to its target market of independilephone compani
and cable television operators as well as OEMs vdioe a high level of engineering services as phatheir procurement process. Clearf
has expanded its product offerings and broadesezigtomer base during the last five years.

Clearfield offers a broad range of telecommunicetiequipment and products including the designraadufacture of standard and cus
connectivity products such as fiber distributiorsteyns, optical components, Outside Plant (“OS&ibinets, and fiber and copper c:
assemblies that serve the communication serviceig®o including Fiber-to-the-Premises (“FTTP’lgrge enterprise, and OEM mark
Clearfield maintains a range of engineering andirie@l knowledge irhouse that works closely with customers to devetystomize ar
enhance products from design through productiorstjdeoducts are produced at Clearfislglant in Plymouth, Minnesota with support fro
network of domestic and global manufacturing pan€learfield specializes in producing these potslon both a quickirn and schedul
delivery basis. Key to our business is strong ateceye of Clearfield proprietary FieldSmart™ Fiber Management Platfproduct line withil
broadband service providers deploying FTTP networks

Products

Clearview CassetteThe Clearview™ Cassette, introduced in Noveml@72is the main building block of the FieldSmambguct platformr
positioning Clearfield as the only company to pdevithe needs of every leg of the telecommunicati@te/ork with a single building blo
architecture. This patent-pending technology igsdesn of five parts that nest together in the dés'semain housing to support a wide rang
applications. Parts can be added or removed ageddedupport the environment in which it is depldyWithin the cassette, all fibers from
subassembly are slack stored, bend radius protect®derured against accidental physical damage faomdlimg. A transparent design allc
the user to see components inside, while the swggther components provide access without tools nfi@intenance, cleaning

troubleshooting. All products which integrate a&igew product in its design are marked as “CleaswMultiplied”.

FieldSmart Fiber Crossover Distribution System (E¥Dhe FieldSmart Fiber Crossover Distribution Sys{@xDS) provides complete fik
management modularity and scalability across ther fnetwork from inside plant to outside plant eaniments. Using the Clearview build
block approach, each fiber




management element provides modularity of phydibal protection in the environment in which itgkaced. The FxDS is system of mod
and scalable building blocks that provide for aamttainment configurations with the use of CleamwMultiplied products. Easily configur
for initial placement and scaling easily from 124gato a full rack of 172®orts, the FieldSmart FxDS requires only four ueidpliocks ti
configure initial deployment. The user then plastsit is needed on the frame as subscriber take datate.

FieldSmart Fiber Scalability Center (FSCljhe FieldSmart FSC is a modular and scalablsidifplant cabinet that allow users to align !
capital equipment expense with subscriber revembis allows rollout of FTTP services by communioatiservice providers without a la
initial expense. Each outside plant cabinet stéeesler and distribution splices, splitters, conoectand slack cable neatly and compa
utilizing field-tested designs to maximize bend radius protectionnector access, ease of cable routing and physiogection, therek
minimizing the risk of fiber damage. The FSC praguwdth the Clearview cassette at its heart, halsesigned to scale with the applica
environment as demand requires and to reduce serwyigo-up time for the end-user.

FieldSmart Fiber Delivery Point (FDRhe Fieldsmart FDP product line is a series of@hale systems for the access network that incotgs
the delivery of fiber connectivity to the neighbodd or business district in the most ceffective footprint possible. The FieldSmart F
family of pedestal inserts teams industry stangsedestal products from a range of suppliers wilbilearfield designed fiber connectiv
module centered around the Clearview Cassette FidldSmart FDP family of wallnount enclosures provides 12 to 144 ports of catiitg
for multi-dwelling unit fiber deployments, fiber demarcatiosecurity systems (CCTV), telecommunications rooreeds an
horizontal/intermediate cross-connects.

Clearview xPAKThe Clearview xPAK, introduced in 2010, is engimeeto land small port count fiber assemblies artitapcomponents i
conveniently and inexpensively as possible. Pricedllow field personnel to carry cartons of Cléaw xPAK Cassettes within them,
XPAK is shipped flat and unassembled. At the deplemt site, the technician will follow simple-folow pictorial user instructions to assen
the device to match field requirements. Integratgd the footprint of the device is an industgmpatible splicing tray, which is th
surrounding with fiber protection elements thatmup either a 2, 4 or fert fiber assembly as well as a range of opticahgonent device
Clearview xPAK is the ideal fiber management deviteen up to 6 fibers are landed or an optical camept device is deployed in a rerr
location. Clearview XPAK has been designed for ogplent in inside and outside plant enclosures.

FieldSmart Small Count Delivery (SCDOhe The FieldSmart SCD product line is a seriepasfels and wallnount enclosures optimized
environments where a smaller number of fibers ageiired. Teamed with the Clearview XPAK, the Fietd® SCD is targeted for applicat
environments such as cell backhaul, business sksgce delivery, node segmentation, fiber exhaust field pedestal, sub-station tuup-o
fiber-to-the-desk deployment .

Optical Components Clearfield packages optical components for sigr@lpling, splitting, termination, multiplexing, wltiplexing an
attenuation to seamlessly integrate with the Field® FxDS, FieldSmart FSC and FieldSmart FDP. Thiseadded packaging allows
customer to source from a single supplier and resligpace requirements. The products are built ested to meet the strictest indu
standards ensuring customers trouble-free perforeamextreme outside plant environments.

Cable Assemblies Clearfield manufactures high quality fiber andpger assemblies with an industry-standard or custa@mecifiec
configuration. Industry-standard assemblies boidtude but are not limited to: single mode fiberyltimode fiber, multifiber, CATV nodt
assembly, DS1 Telco, DS 3 (734/735) coax, Categergnd 6, SCSI, Token Ring, and V.35. In addit@learfield's engineering services te
works alongside the engineering design departnadraar OEM customers to design and
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manufacture custom solutions for both in-the-bowel as network connectivity assemblies specdithiat customer’s product line.
Marketing and Distribution

Clearfield markets its products in the United Statterough a direct field sales force supported byirsernal customer sales and sup
team. This internal team works proactively witte tbutside sales force to maintain a high level a$t@mer contact through regt
communication of product availability, order prosieg, and status and delivery information. Cleddfigorks closely with its target custom
to configure the Company’s product platform to thient’s unique requirements. Our high level of custosevice helps bring new produ
to markets with the design input from our custoneerd network of consulting engineering firms. Tewne we cover all markets, we lever
our internal customer support team with a combimatif manufacturer representative organizations.

Competition

Competitors to the FieldSmart FxDS, FSC, FDP an® $@bduct lines include, but are not limited topr@ing Cabling Systems, Inc., O
(Furukawa Electric North America, Inc.), AFL Teleamunications, a (Fujikura Ltd. of Japan), Alcatak., and Tyco Electronics, Inc. wh
announced its bid to acquire ADC Telecommunicatiéms. in July of 2010. Nearly all of these firmeaubstantially larger than Clearfield .
as a result may be able to procure pricing for sgmgy components and labor at much lower pricesipg@dition for the custom fiber and cop
termination services for cable assemblies is irde@®mpetitors range from small, familyn businesses to very large contract manufact
facilities. Clearfield believes that it has a cortijpee advantage with customers who can leveragecthst savings the Clearview cassette
provide and those who require quick-turn, hjggrformance customized products, and that it toatpetitive disadvantage with customers
principally seek large volume commodity products.

Sources of Materials and Outsourced Labor

Numerous purchased materials, components, and keoused in the manufacturing of the Com|'s products. Most of these are rea
available from multiple suppliers. However, somigical components and outsourced labor are purchfreen a single or a limited number
suppliers. The loss of access to some componautoatsourced labor could have an adverse effecunrability to deliver products or
timely basis and on our financial performance.

Major Customers

Two customers, Power & Telephone Supply CompanyMin8 Systems Corporation, comprised approximat8hb2and 40% of total sales
the periods ended September 30, 2010 and Septe30beér009, respectively. Power & Telephone Supplyn@any is a distributor and
accounted for 20% and 32% of revenue for the cparding respective periods. MTS Systems Corporatgoan end user customer an
accounted for 8% and 8% of revenues for the cooredipg respective periods. MTS Systems Corporgtarcthases our product through
standard form of purchase order with pricing edshlld by a schedule that is in effect from Jul2Q08 through June 30, 2011. Powe
Telephone Supply Company purchases our produadirds standard form of purchase order.

Patents and Trademarks

As of September 30, 2010, we had one patent graariddone pending in the United States and two pgngatent applications inside ¢
outside the United States. We have also develapddire using




trademarks and logos to market and promote ounygtsdincluding Clearfiel@, Clearview® and FieldSmar® .
Backlog

Backlog reflects purchase order commitments for pruaducts received from customers that have yedbedulfilled. Backlog orders a
generally shipped within three months. The Complaay a backlog of $2,677,000 as of September 30 20d $1,228,334 as of Septen
30, 2009.

Seasonality

We are affected by the seasonal trends in the iridasve serve. We typically experience sequentialiver revenues in our first and sec
fiscal quarters, primarily due to customer budgefes, deployment schedules, some customer gedgedmoncentrations as well as stant
vacation and holiday calendars. Revenues usuabthra seasonal peak in our third and fourth figoalkters.

Product Development

Product development for Clearfietd’product line program has been conducted intgrn&lle believe that the communication indu
environment is constantly evolving and our succksggends on our ability to anticipate and resportti¢se changes. Our focus is to analyz
environment and technology and work to develop petalthat simplify our customerBusiness by developing innovative high quality prcte
utilizing modular design wherever possible.

Employees

As of September 30, 2010, the Company had 13@&ifa#-employees. We also have several paré employees and independent contrac
None of our employees are covered by any colledtargaining agreement. We believe our employesiogls to be gooc

Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single reportable segment

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
The impact and the timing of the impact of the Anieain Recovery and Reinvestment Act on our businassuncertain.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARR&igely known as the “Stimulus Bill,vas enacted in February 2009. The AF
allocates $7.2 billion in grants, loans and loamrgatees for broadband/wireless initiatives foarumserved and underserved geogra|
across the country, with these initiatives admarst by several federal agencies. This funding/éslable to a wide variety of organizatio
including our customers and prospective customergurchase and implement network infrastructurd services to improve broadb:
coverage. As part of the criteria established gy fdderal agencies administering these progranasptbjects to be funded through the
federal stimulus plan must be approved by the stagtates in which the projects will be located.

Currently, a limited portion of the funding alloedt by the ARRA for these broadband/wireless initést has been distributed to awar
applicants. Our customers and prospective cussmery postpone projects involving telecommunicatiequipment such as ours until
availability and amount of




stimulus funds for a particular project is knownawarded. Accordingly, they may experience sigaifit delays in the funding of proje
through the ARRA, which, in turn, will delay thgiurchase of equipment for their projects. We cameoassured to what extent the AR
will impact demand for our products, our result®pérations or the timing of purchases by customers

A large percentage of our sales have been made small number of customers, and the loss of a majoistomer would adversely affect

In fiscal years 2010 and 2009, one distributor @umstr accounted for 20% and 32% of our revenue ertely. In addition, another ende
customer accounted for 8% and 8% of our revendisdal years 2010 and 2009, respectively. If thiera loss of one or more of these m
customers or a significant decline in sales toegithf these major customers, it would have a maltedverse effect on our results fi
operations.

Intense competition in our industry may result irripe reductions, lower gross profits and loss of rket share.

Competition in the telecommunications equipment aadvices industry is intense. Our competitors rhaye or could develop or acqt
marketing, financial, development and personnedueses that exceed ours. Our ability to competeessfully will depend on whether we

continue to advance the technology of our prodactd develop new products, the acceptance of owdupte among our customers

prospective customers and our ability to anticipatstomer needs in product development, as wehagprice, quality and reliability of o
products, our delivery and service capabilities] aar control of operating expenses.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to compeiccessfully against our current or future coitgrst Increased competition fr
manufacturers of telecommunications equipment sischurs may result in price reductions, lower gprséit margins, and increased discol
to customers and loss of market share and couldireedncreased spending by us on research and afsweht, sales and marketing
customer support.

Our results of operations could be adversely affattby economic conditions and the effects of thesmditions on our customers
businesses.

Adverse changes in economic conditions, includimgrecent recession in the United States, havdtedsand may continue to result in lo\
spending among our customers and contribute toedeed sales to our distributors and customerghémirour business may be adver
affected by factors such as downturns in econotigity in specific geographic areas or in the ¢el@munications industry; social, political
labor conditions; or adverse changes in the aviitlaland cost of capital, interest rates, tax sater regulations. These factors are beyoni
control, but may result in further decreases imdpgy among customers and softening demand fopmducts. Declines in demand for
products will adversely affect our revenue. Furtldrallenging economic conditions also may imph& ability of our customers to pay
products and services they have purchased. Asult,rear cash flow may be negatively impacted andallowance for doubtful accounts :
write-offs of accounts receivable may increase.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantlydm quarter to quarter, which may make budgetingrfexpenses difficult and me
negatively affect the market price of our commomek.

Because many purchases by customers of our prodkiate to a specific customer project, the skema demand for our products can flucti
significantly and our ability to forecast sales @edely from quarter to quarter is limited. Thisdtuation can be further affected by the |
sales cycles necessary to obtain contracts to pegpiipment for these projects, the availabilitapital to fund our customers’




projects, and the impact of the American Recovery Reinvestment Act on customer buying pattern@s&€Hong sales cycles may resu
significant effort expended with no resulting sadesales that are not made in the anticipatedtguabemand for our projects will also dep
upon the extent to which our customers and progectistomers initiate these projects and the éxtewhich we are selected to provide
equipment in these projects, neither of which canabsured. These factors generally result in faiios, sometimes significant, in
operating results.
Other factors that may affect our quarterly opetiesults including:

« the volume and timing of orders from and shipmémtsur customers;

« work stoppages and other developments affectingpleeations of our customers;

« the timing of and our ability to obtain new custarnentracts and the timing of revenue recognit

« the timing of new product and service announcements

« the availability of products and servici

« market acceptance of new and enhanced versiong @iroducts and services;

« Vvariations in the mix of products and services elé&

« the utilization of our production capacity and eayges; and

« the availability and cost of key components of products

Further, we budget our expenses based in part pectations of future revenues. If revenue levels iparticular quarter are lower tt
expected, our operating results will be affectedeasely.

Because of these factors, our quarterly operatisglts are difficult to predict and are likely tary in the future. If our operating results
below financial analysts’ or investors’ expectatipthe market price of our common stock may fatlahly and significantly.

To compete effectively, we must continually impraasdsting products and introduce new products tteathieve market acceptance.

The telecommunications equipment industry is charamed by rapid technological changes, evolvindustry standards, changing ma
conditions and frequent new product and servicedhictions and enhancements. The introduction oflyets using new technologies or
adoption of new industry standards can make owsgtiegi products, or products under development, lebsor unmarketable. In order to ren
competitive and increase sales, we will need ticigatte and adapt to these rapidly changing teduyies, enhance our existing products
introduce new products to address the changing ddsnaf our customers.

Many of our competitors have greater engineerind) @roduct development resources than we have. @dfihave expect to continue to inv
substantial resources in product development sietlyiour efforts to achieve and maintain profiigbiwill require us to be selective a
focused with our research and development expawmditd-urther, our existing and developmsteige products may become obsolete it
competitors introduce newer or more appealing teldgies. If these technologies are patented orr@tgpy to our competitors, we may not
able to access these technologies.




If we fail to anticipate or respond in a cadfective and timely manner to technological depetents, changes in industry standarc
customer requirements, or if we experience anyifsdgmt delays in product development or introdaiti our business, operating results
financial condition could be affected adversely.

We may face circumstances in the future that wilksult in impairment charges, including, but not lited to, significant goodwi
impairment charges.

If the fair value of any of our lonlived assets decreases as a result of an econtamidavn, a downturn in the markets where we saltpct:
and services or a downturn in our financial perfance and/or future outlook, we may be requiredetmord an impairment charge on s
assets, including goodwill.

We are required to test intangible assets withfinde life periods for potential impairment annlyahnd on an interim basis if there
indicators of a potential impairment. We also aguired to evaluate amortizable intangible assatisfixed assets for impairment if there
indicators of a possible impairment. One poteritidicator of impairment is the value of our markepitalization compared to our net b
value. Significant declines in our market capitaian could require us to record material goodasitl other impairment charges. Impairn
charges could have a negative impact on our regfitiperations and financial position, as well adlte market price of our common stock.

We rely on singlesource suppliers, which could cause delays, ince=am costs or prevent us from completing custoroeters, all of whict
could materially harm our business.

We assemble our products using materials and coemgersupplied by various subcontractors and sugph&e purchase critical compone
for our products, including injected molded pantsl @onnectors from third parties, some of whomsamgle- or limitedsource suppliers. If al
of our suppliers are unable to ship critical comgruts, we may be unable to manufacture and shipuptedo our distributors or customers
the price of these components increases for argorear if these suppliers are unable or unwilliagieliver, we may have to find anot
source, which could result in interruptions, inae@ costs, delays, loss of sales and quality coptoblems.

Further, the costs to obtain certain raw materdald supplies are subject to price fluctuations,ciwhinay be substantial, because of gl
market demands. Many companies utilize the samennaterials and supplies in the production of tipeoducts as we use in our produ
Companies with more resources than us may havenpetitive advantage in obtaining raw materials anpplies due to greater purcha:
power. Some raw materials or supplies may be stibjexgulatory actions, which may affect availabigplies. Furthermore, due to gen
economic conditions in the United States and glgbalur suppliers may experience financial diffiges, which could result in increas
delays, additional costs, or loss of a supplier.

The termination or interruption of any of theseati@nships, or the failure of these manufacturersuppliers to supply components or
materials to us on a timely basis or in sufficigofntities, likely would cause us to be unable &etrorders for our products and harm
reputation and our business. Identifying and qualif alternative suppliers would take time, invokignificant additional costs and may d¢
the production of our products. Further, if we @bta new supplier or assemble our product usinglemnative source of supply, we may n
to conduct additional testing of our products tswee the product meets our quality and performataedards. Any delays in delivery of
product to distributors or customers could be edéel and our costs associated with the changeotfupt manufacturing could increase.

The failure of our thirdparty manufacturers to manufacture the productsi$pand the failure of our suppliers of componeanid raw materia
to supply us consistent with our requirements agedity,




guantity and timeliness could materially harm ousibess by causing delays, loss of sales, incréasests and lower gross profit margins.

We lack experience manufacturing our products aighi volumes and we may be required to rapidly incseaur manufacturing capacity
deliver our products to our customers in a timelyammer.

We manufacture and assemble our products at olilityfas Plymouth, Minnesota. Our success will dageupon our ability to costffectively
manufacture a reliable product and deliver thatdpod in a timely manner. Because we lack experienaaufacturing our products in la
guantities, we may encounter difficulties in mainitag production efficiencies, quality control andsurance, component supply and qua
personnel.

Our success depends upon adequate protection ofpatent and intellectual property rights.

Our future success depends in part upon our piapyigechnology. We attempt to protect our propmgttechnology through pater
trademarks, copyrights and trade secrets. Howehese legal means afford us only limited protect#md may not adequately protect
rights or remedies to gain or keep any advantagemay have over our competitors. Accordingly, \warmt predict whether these protect
will be adequate, or whether our competitors watvelop similar technology independently, withowlating our proprietary rights.

Our competitors, who may have or could developoguae significant resources, may make substaimiedstments in competing technolog
or may apply for and obtain patents that will praydimit, or interfere with our ability to manufase or market our products. Further, althc
we do not believe that any of our products infritige rights of others, third parties may in theufetclaim, our products infringe on their rig
and these third parties may assert infringemeislagainst us in the future.

We may litigate to enforce patents issued to ustartfend against claimed infringement of the t3ghf others or to determine the owners
scope, or validity of our proprietary rights ane tlights of others. Any claim of infringement agains could involve significant liabilities
third parties, could require us to seek licensemfthird parties, and could prevent us from manufétg, selling or using our products. 7
occurrence of this litigation, or the effect of asfverse determination in any of this type of litiga, could have a material adverse effect or
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our failure to protect or enforce our intellectpabperty rights could have a material adverse eff@cour business, results of operations
financial condition.

Further consolidation among our customers may resuh the loss of some customers and may reduce meeeduring the pendency
business combinations and related integration attes.

We believe consolidation among our customers infthere will continue in order for them to increaswrket share and achieve gre
economies of scale. Consolidation has impactedasiness as our customers focus on completing éssicombinations and integrating t
operations. In connection with this merger and &itjon activity, our customers may postpone orcedrorders for our product based
revised plans for technology or network expansiending consolidation activity. Customers integrgtiargescale acquisitions may a
reduce their purchases of equipment during thgiaten period, or postpone or cancel orders.

The impact of significant mergers among our custsnon our business is likely to be unclear untinetime after such transactions
completed. After a consolidation occurs, a customay choose to reduce the number of vendors fromhwih purchases equipment and r
choose one of our competitors




as its preferred vendor. There can be no assuthatwe will continue to supply equipment to thevéting communications service provider
after a business combination is completed.

We are dependent on key personnel.

Our failure to attract and retain skilled personoalild hinder the management of our business, esgarch and development, our sales
marketing efforts, and our manufacturing capaksitiOur future success depends to a significantedegpon the continued services of
senior management personnel, including Cheryl Pamgk, our Chief Executive Officer and John P. Hillr Chief Operating Officer. We he
employment agreements with Ms. Beranek and Mr.tH#t provides that if we terminate the employnwdreither executive without cause ¢
the executive terminates her or his employmengémd reason, we would be required to make spegif@ganents to them as described in 1
employment agreement. We have key person life ama@ on Ms. Beranek or Mr. Hill. Further, our fusuccess also depends on
continuing ability to attract, retain and motivdtighly qualified managerial, technical and salesspenel. Our inability to retain or attr.
qualified personnel could have a significant negaéffect and thereby materially harm our busirsgssfinancial condition.

Product defects or the failure of our products toeet specifications could cause us to lose custonzard revenue or to incur unexpect
expenses.

If our products do not meet our customegrsiformance requirements, our customer relatiossinipy suffer. Also, our products may con
defects or fail to meet product specifications. Aajure or poor performance of our products caasult in:

« lack of or delayed market acceptance of our prajuct

« delayed product shipmen

« unexpected expenses and diversion of resourceplace defective products or identify and corrketdource of errors;

« damage to our reputation and our customer relatipag

- delayed recognition of sales or reduced sales; and

« product liability claims or other claims for damagbat may be caused by any product defects ocompesice failures
Our products are often critical to the performantdelecommunications systems. Many of our supgseaments contain limited warra
provisions. If these contractual limitations areenforceable in a particular jurisdiction or if weeaxposed to product liability claims that
not covered by insurance, a claim could harm osirtass.
Our stock price has been volatile historically amghy continue to be volatile. The price of our commstock may fluctuate significantly.
The trading price of our common stock has beenrmaag continue to be subject to wide fluctuationsr €tock price may fluctuate in respo
to a number of events and factors, such as quastarlations in operating results, announcementedinological innovations or new prodt

by us or our competitors, changes in financialnestes and recommendations by securities analy&serating and stock price performe
of other companies that investors may deem competalus, and new reports relating to trends inroarkets or general economic conditions.




In addition, the stock market is subject to pricel aolume fluctuations that affect the market mider companies in general, and small-
capitalization, hightechnology companies like us in particular. Thiessad market and industry fluctuations may advgraéfect the price «
our common stock, regardless of our operating perdoce. Further, any failure by us to meet or eddbe expectations of financial analyst
investors is likely to cause a decline in our comrstock price. Further, recent economic conditioarge resulted in significant fluctuations .
significant declines in stock prices for many comipa, including Clearfield. We cannot predict whiba stock markets and the market for
common stock may stabilize.

Future sales of shares of our common stock in thebfic market may negatively affect our stock price.

Future sales of our common stock, or the percepliahthese sales could occur, could have a sigmifinegative effect on the market pric
our common stock. In addition, upon exercise oftautding options, the number of shares outstandiraur common stock could incre:
substantially. This increase, in turn, could dilfiwéure earnings per share, if any, and could deptee market value of our common st
Dilution and potential dilution, the availabilityf @ large amount of shares for sale, and the piliggibf additional issuances and sales of
common stock may negatively affect both the tragirige of our common stock and the liquidity of @ammon stock. These sales also
make it more difficult for us to sell equity sedie$ or equity-related securities in the futura éitne and price that we would deem appropriate.

Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documenur shareholder rights agreement, Minnesota lamdaother agreements cou
prevent or delay a change in control of our compal

Certain provisions of our articles of incorporat@md bylaws, our shareholder rights agreement (aisavn as a “poison pill")Minnesota la
and other agreements may make it more difficultafahird- party to acquire, or discourage a thgedty from attempting to acquire, contro
our company, including:

« the provisions of our bylaws regarding the busimesgerly brought before shareholders;

« the right of our board of directors to establishrentihan one class or series of shares and todixetative rights and preferences of
such different classes or seri

« our shareholder rights agreement, which would caubstantial dilution to any person or group atteéngpto acquire our company
terms not approved in advance by our Board of Dirs¢

« the provisions of Minnesota law relating to busgiesmbinations and control share acquisitions; and
« the provisions of our stock option plans allowing the acceleration of vesting or payments of awamnted under the plans in
event of specified events that result in a “chaimgeontrol” and provisions of agreements with certain of oueceive officer

requiring payments if their employment is terminbaéad there is “change in contrc”

These measures could discourage or prevent a tekebws or changes in our management, even ifcguisition or such changes woulc
beneficial to our shareholders. This may have atieg effect on the price of our common stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Clearfield leases a 30,000 square foot facility5d480 Nathan Lane North in Plymouth, Minnesota cstitgj of our corporate office
manufacturing and warehouse space. The lease corechem July 1, 2006 with rent commencing on Novemrihe2006. The initial lea
payment was $16,926 per month with annual increasepproximately 3.3%. Currently, our monthly rést$19,379. The lease expires
November 30, 2013. The lease is backed by an uitgomal, irrevocable letter of credit equal to apgamately five months rent. In addition,
September 1, 2010, the Company entered into asécém rent an additional 7,338 square feet of adjawarehouse space for $9,175 for
five month period ending February 28, 2011, wittoption to extend month to month through to Augist2011.

We own a 24,000 square foot production facilithlmerdeen, South Dakota, which is partially leased @ccupied. (See Note C in the Finar
Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.)

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
The Company is exposed to a number of assertedimasserted legal claims encountered in the ordicanyse of its business. Although

outcome of any such legal actions cannot be predlichanagement believes that there are no pergtijad) proceedings against or involving
Company for which the outcome is likely to have @enial adverse effect upon its financial positiwnesults of operations.

ITEM 4. [REMOVED AND RESERVED]
PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Globak&taystem of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC undersgmabol “CLFD.” The followinc
table sets forth the quarterly high and low sakéseg for our common stock for each quarter ofigast two fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 201 High Low
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $4.9( $2.0:
Quarter ended March 31, 20 $3.4¢ $1.9:¢
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $2.9¢ $2.3:
Quarter ended September 30, 2! $2.9¢ $2.2¢
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 20( High Low
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $1.3( $0.7¢
Quarter ended March 31, 20 $1.3] $1.0(
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $2.0( $1.0¢
Quarter ended September 30, 2! $5.5¢ $1.5¢

The foregoing prices reflect inter-dealer priceghout dealer markup, markdown, or commissions@ag not represent actual transactions.
Approximate Number of Holders of Common Stock

There were approximately 318 holders of recordusfammmon stock as of September 30, 2010.
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Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends on our commarksiWe do not intend in the foreseeable futuredg pash dividends on our comn
stock.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table describes shares of our comistock that are available on September 30, 201pdorhase under outstanding stdidse:

awards, or reserved for issuance under stided awards or other rights that may be grantebeirfuture, under our equity compensas
plans:

Number of securities

Number of remaining available
securities to be for future issuance
issued upon Weightec-average under equity
exercise of exercise price of compensation plans
outstanding outstanding (excluding those
options, warrants options, warrants reflected in column
Plan Categor and rights (a and rights (b’ (@)
Equity compensation plans approved by seci
holders
2007 Stock Compensation Option P 1,056,001 $ 1.42 316,00(
Stock Option Plan for Non Employee Direct: 82,50( $ 1.1z -
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holder: = > §
Total 1,138,501 $ 1.4C 316,00(

Issuer Repurchases

We did not purchase any shares of our common stocdhkg the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not Requirec
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

Statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10ikhe Company other SEC filings, in press releases and insiedéments, that are |
statements of historical fact are “forward-lookistgtements.” Such forwaldeking statements involve known and unknown riskssertaintie
and other factors which may cause the actual esulperformance of the Company to be materialtiedint from the results or performa
expressed or implied by such forward-looking staets. The words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipate’seeks” and similar expressio
identify forward-looking statements. Readers argioaed not to place undue reliance on these fathmoking statements, which speak onl'
of the date the statement was made. The risks andrtainties that could cause actual results tfedihaterially and adversely from -
forward-looking statements include those risks dbed in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors.”

Overview of Business:The Company focuses on highly configurable prodémtdelecommunications customers, primarily redate cabling
management requirements of the fiber-to{phemises (FTTP) marketplace and the design, manuégdistribution, and marketing of a vari
of fiber optics and copper components to the datansunication and telecommunication industries. Tmnpanies primary manufactu
products include standard and custom fiber optldecassemblies, copper cable assemblies, OSP tabusdue-added fiber optics frame
panels and modules.

Critical Accounting Policies: In preparing our financial statements, we makevests, assumptions and judgments that can hagaifican
impact on our revenues, income or loss from opanatend net income or loss, as well as on the v@lwertain assets and liabilities on
balance sheet. We believe that there are severauiating policies that are critical to an underdtag of our historical and future performar
as these policies affect the reported amountsvaimees, expenses and significant estimates andnjeioky applied by management. While tl
are a number of accounting policies, methods atichates affecting our financial statements, areasare particularly significant include:

. Stock option accounting
. Accounting for income taxes; al
. Valuation and evaluating impairment of Ic-lived assets and goodwi

Stock-Based Compensation We measure and recognize compensation expensd &ipek-based payments at fair value over the reqt
service period. We use the BlaBkcholes option pricing model to determine the failue of stock options award on the date of graht
determination of fair value of share-based paynagvdards on the date of grant using an oppdoing model is affected by our stock price
well as by management assumptions regarding a nuafbariables. These variables include, but arelindted to, the expected stock pr
volatility over the term of the awards and the etpd life of the award, which is based in part upotual and projected employee stock of
exercise behaviors.

The expected terms of the options and employed gtochase plan rights are based on evaluatiohsstifrical and expected future emplo
exercise behavior. The rigkee interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasueg & the date of grant with maturity dates apipnately equal t
the expected life at grant date. Volatility is bdism historical and expected future volatility bEtCompanys stock. The Company has
historically issued any dividends and does not exfiein the future. Forfeitures are estimatechattime of the grant and revised, if neces:
in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures difimm estimates. If factors change, we may empldfedint assumptions in the calculatior
compensation expense and the
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compensation expense recorded for future periodsdifi@r significantly from the expense recordedhie current period.

Income Taxes We account for income taxes in accordance with Antiog Standards Codification (“ASC740, under which the amount
deferred income taxes is determined based on tiveated future tax effects of differences betwees financial statement and tax base
assets and liabilities given the provisions of ésgddax laws. Deferred income tax provisions anukfies are based on changes to the ass
liabilities from year to year. In providing for dafed taxes, we consider tax regulations of thisdistions in which we operate, estimate
future taxable income, and available tax plannitrgtegies. If tax regulations, operating resultstre ability to implement tagptanning
strategies vary, adjustments to the carrying vafugeferred tax assets and liabilities may be megluiValuation allowances are recorded rel
to deferred tax assets based on the “more likely tiot” criteria of ASC 740.

In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, weognize the financial statement benefit of a tesitpn only after determining that 1
relevant tax authority would more likely than noistin the position following an audit. For tax piosis meeting the more likely than |
threshold, the amount recognized in the finandetiesnents is the largest benefit that has a gréader 50 percent likelihood of being reali
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax atitih. The Company recognizes interest and persakiecrued on any unrecognized
benefits as a component of income tax expense.

As of September 30, 2010 the Company had U.S. éded state net operating loss (NOL) cdogwards of approximately $32,289,000
$23,033,000, respectively, which expire in fiscahgs 2020 to 2028. In fiscal 2009 The Company cetaglan Internal Revenue Code Se«
382 analysis of the loss carry-forwards and deteechithat all of the Company’s loss cafoywards were utilizable and not restricted ul
Section 382 as of September 30, 2009.

At September 30, 2008, all of the Companyget deferred tax assets were offset with a vialwatlowance. During the fourth quarter of fis
year 2009, the Company reversed a portion of iisaten allowance in consideration of all availaplsitive and negative evidence, incluc
our historical operating results, current finan@andition, and potential future taxable incomee Taduction in the valuation allowance in
fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009 resulted in a4oash income tax benefit of approximately $2.5iamil

As part of the process of preparing our financiatesments, we are required to estimate our inc@xdidbility in each of the jurisdictions
which we do business. This process involves esiimgatur actual current tax expense together wisessing temporary differences resul
from differing treatment of items for tax and acobing purposes. These differences result in dedfetai assets and liabilities. We must 1
assess the likelihood that these deferred taxsassktbe recovered from future taxable income @ondhe extent we believe that recovery is
more likely than not or unknown, we must estabéislaluation allowance.

Our future potential taxable income was evaluataeged primarily on anticipated operating resultsffecal years 2011 through 2013.
determined that projecting operating results bey2®t3 involves substantial uncertainty and we disted forecasts beyond 2013 as a ba:
support our deferred tax assets. Based upon gessment of all available evidence, the Companlyreliase additional valuation allowal
for the year ended September 30, 2010 in an amouwnlich the tax benefit generated offsets thepavision to be realized from current y
estimated taxable income. The Company continuesed¢ord a valuation allowance of approximately ®1fillion against its remainir
deferred tax assets. The Company will continuessess the assumptions used to determine the ambont valuation allowance and
adjust the valuation allowance in future periodsdaaon changes in assumptions of estimated futemrie and other factors. If the valua
allowance is reduced, we
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would record an income tax benefit in the periogltaluation allowance is reduced. If the valuattiowance is increased, we would record
additional income tax expense. Income tax expeoskl de materially different from actual result€@ese of changes in management’s
expectations regarding future taxable income, ¢hetionship between book and taxable income, angleanning strategies employed by the
Company.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20¥0Cibmpany recorded a deferred income tax expen$83250 for the book and income
basis difference in goodwill on acquisitions. THisferred income tax expense was netted againgdefegred tax benefit resulting from
reduction in the valuation allowance.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.Qidfal jurisdiction, and various state jurisdictior&ased on its evaluation, the Company
concluded that it has no significant unrecognized lienefits. With limited exceptions, the Compayo longer subject to U.S. federal
state income tax examinations for fiscal yearsmmpgrior 1994. In 2007 the Company changed itafigear to September 30.

Impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill The Company’s londjved assets at September 30, 2010 consisted pepsoand equipmel
The Company records the excess of purchase costtbgefair value of net tangible assets of acquicethpanies as goodwill or otl
identifiable intangible assets. The Company revithvescarrying amount of its lonlgred assets annually in the fourth quarter of efi&sdal yea
and more frequently if events or changes in cirdamses indicate that the carrying amount of thetassiay not be recoverable. When
review indicates the carrying amount of an asseisset group exceeds the sum of the future undisedwcash flows expected to be genel
by the assets, the Company recognizes an asseirimgpé charge against operations for the amountvbich the carrying amount of t
impaired asset exceeds its fair value.

Determining market values using a discounted chwsh fmethod involves significant judgment and reggithe Company to make signific
estimates and assumptions, including léegn projections of cash flows, market conditiomsl @ppropriate discount rates. The Comp:
judgments are based on historical experience, umarket trends, consultations with external véduaspecialists and other informati
While the Company believes that the estimates asdmaptions underlying the valuation methodologyrassonable, different estimates
assumptions could result in a different outcomee T@ompany generally develops these forecasts baisedcent sales data for exist
products, planned timing of new product launchas, estimated expansion of the FTTP market.

If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceégsfair value, the Company measures the possibtagill impairment loss based on
allocation of the estimate of fair value of the ogmg unit to all of the underlying assets andilities of the reporting unit, including a
previously unrecognized intangible assets. The sxoéthe fair value of a reporting unit over timeoaints assigned to its assets and liabiliti
the implied fair value of goodwill. An impairmerdds is recognized to the extent that a reportirijsurecorded goodwill exceeds the imp
fair value of goodwill. This test for the perioddad September 30, 2010 resulted in no change tvgthdrom the prior period.

No impairment of lon-lived assets has occurred during the years endpte®ber 30, 2010 or September 30, 2009, resphctive
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Results of Operation

Year ended September 30, 2010 compared to year ewndgeptember 30, 2009

Revenues for the fiscal year ended 2010 decreddetb 224,367,000 from revenue of $24,944,000 in92atis change is attributable to
weak economic climate in the first half of fiscad1® and continuing delays in awards to customeemuthe American Recovery ¢
Reinvestment Act (ARRA), that was partially off¢st increasing sales in the second half of fiscdl®€hat benefited from the Compasay’
customers beginning receiving awards under the ARRé strong summer deployments.

Revenues in fiscal year 2010 to commercial datevordds and broadband service providers were 86%lessor $21,049,000, while reven
associated with contract manufacturing for origiequipment manufacturers outside of the telecomeatioins market were 14% of sales
$3,318,000, for fiscal 2010. For fiscal 2009, rawves to commercial data networks and broadbandcegpvoviders were also 86% of sales
$21,390,000, while revenues associated with contremufacturing for original equipment manufactareutside of the telecommunicati
market were 14% of sales, or $3,555,000.

Gross margin increased from 35.6% in 2009 to 37i/H%2010 resulting in a gross profit of $9,138,062010 as compared to $8,871,00
2009, an increase of $267,000 or 3%. The 1.9% a&serén gross margin is attributable to the resflsn-going programs to reduce the cos
products through a combination of new product ihtiction, process improvement, global sourcing ofmpgonents and supply ch
partnerships with non U.S. manufacturing organizesi

Selling, general and administrative expense ine@&86, or $354,000, from $7,629,000 for 2009 t®$8,000 for 2010. This increase refl
a continuing investment in sales, marketing, prosgoanagement, and product engineering coupled sxiiense associated with performance-
based compensation that we believe contribute tio $sles and profitability.

Income from operations for 2010 was $1,123,000 aegbto $1,211,000 for 2009, a reduction of 7%88,800. This change is attributabli
reduced revenue and increased operating expenses.

Interest income in fiscal 2010 improved to $143,00Ciscal year from $125,000 in fiscal year 200Bhis increase is attributable to
transition from money market investments from e2099 to FDIC backed bank certificates of depasiate 2009 and early 2010.

Interest expense decreased from $6,000 in 20091 1@0@ in 2010. The interest is attributable to ficiag associated with the enterp
information system installed during 2007 and 200&se notes were paid in full on June 23, 2010.

Other income decreased from $82,000 in 2009 to0886in 2010. This consists of lease income on tbm@anys Aberdeen, South Daki
facility. In March 2009, the tenant defaulted oe thase by failure to pay rent. We terminated &asé with our tenant as of April 2009. /£
consequence of the lease termination we recordédcame the amount of $43,000 in 2009 previoustorded as an accrual, which wa
have resulted in a reduced sale price to the tepanthe lease agreement. We are currently leasaéacility on a month-toronth basis wit
the same tenant.

16




Income tax expense for fiscal 2010 was $121,00@ctfig amortization of goodwill which is deferreféderal alternative minimum tax, €
various state taxes in the amount of $3,800. Inctarebenefit for 2009 was $2,372,000 which reflabts recognition of a deferred tax a
(DTA). The DTA is $2,464,000 and is offset by tara@tization of goodwill of $65,000, which is defed; tax expense for federal alterna
minimum tax of approximately $20,000 and variowsesttaxes in the amount of $7,000. Net income ifwaf year 2010 was $1,181,00(
$0.10 per share for basic and $0.09 for dilutedpamed to $3,785,000 or $0.32 per share for baslc$@r81 per diluted share for the year 2

Liquidity and Capital Resource

As of September 30, 2010, our principal sourcefitlity was our cash and cash equivalents andt4éon investments. Those sources
$7,051,000, compared to $6,840,000, at Septemhet08®. Our excess cash is invested in certificateleposit backed by the FDIC. We h
no long-term debt obligations at September 30, 2010

Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operations for the tweleaths ended September 30, 2010 totaled $629,00 wis primarily due to our net inco
of $1,181,000, depreciation of $498,000, and stomsed compensation of $168,000. This was offsetrbincrease in accounts receivabl
$521,000, an increase in inventory of $358,000aneHuction in accounts payable of $432,000.

Net cash generated from operations for the tweleaths ended September 30, 2009 totaled $2,0911016.was primarily due to our r
income of $3,785,000, depreciation of $434,000¢ckstoased compensation of $115,000 and a decredsgentories of $935,000. This w
offset by noneash charges for net deferred taxes of $2,390,800ncrease in accounts receivable of $190,000raddction in accoun
payable of $637,000.

Investing Activities

For the twelve months ended September 30, 201qurehased $453,000 of manufacturing and IT equipraed software. During the sa
period we purchased $2,479,000 of FOi&cked certificates of deposit and sold approxiime#2,427,000 of securities most of which w
available-forsale securities. In addition we received procedd$485,336 from the payoff of the note from AnilidaThe result is a n
decrease in cash from investing activities of $9@,0rhe Company intends to continue to invest értbcessary and appropriate manufact
equipment to help maintain a competitive positiomianufacturing capability.

For the twelve months ended September 30, 2009usehased $181,000 of manufacturing and IT equipraed software. During the sa
period we purchased $6,503,000 of FOi&cked certificates of deposit and sold approxiiped,962,000 of securities most of which w
available-for-sale securities. The result is aimetease in cash from investing activities of $2,090.

Financing Activities

For the twelve months ended September 30, 201Qsed $33,000 to make scheduled debt principal patsnEincipally associated with 1
financing of our IT systems. We received $50,0@0rfithe issuance of stock from the exercise of epg@stock options. The net cash rece
from financing activities totaled $16,000.

For the twelve months ended September 30, 2009sed $62,000 to make scheduled debt principal pagsnEincipally associated with 1
financing of our IT systems. We received $91,0@0rfithe
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issuance of stock from the exercise of employeekstptions. The net cash received from financirgyaies totaled $29,000.

The Company has current cash and cash equivaladtsnaestments all with a maturity of less tharethiyears that total $10,287,000
believe this provides a strong financial positiord along with cash flow from operations will be feziént to meet its working capital a
investment requirements for the next 12 monthse Tompany intends on utilizing its available casld assets primarily for its contint
organic growth, as well as potential future stretd¢gansactions. However, future growth, organicalt through acquisition, may require
Company to raise capital through additional eqoityebt financing. There can be no assurance thasach financing would be available
commercially acceptable terms.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In April 2009, the FASB issued ASC No. 820-10-358jrvalue Measurements and Disclosuré&ubsequent Measurement, which discusse
provisions related to the determination of fairuealvhen the volume and level of activity for theetsor liability have significantly decreas
Based on the guidance in ASC No. 8203B)-f an entity determines that the level of atyior an asset or liability has significantly dease
and that a transaction is not orderly, further gsialof transactions or quoted prices is needed aasignificant adjustment to the transactic
guoted prices may be necessary to estimate failevdlhe guidance in ASC No. 820-38-is to be applied prospectively and is effecfi
interim and annual periods ending after June 1892Qith early adoption permitted for periods endaftger March 15, 2009. Our adoptior
this guidance had no impact on our financial stateis

In June 2009, the FASB issued new standards omblarinterest entities (VIE), as codified in 810- which requires an entity to perforr
qualitative analysis to determine whether the @mige’s variable interest gives it a controlling finarciaterest in a VIE. This analy:
identifies a primary beneficiary of a VIE as thdignthat has both of the following characteristigsthe power to direct the activities of a \
that most significantly impact the entisyeconomic performance and ii) the obligation teaab losses or receive benefits from the entity
could potentially be significant to the VIE. The@pany is required to complete ongoing reassessmétite primary beneficiary of a VIE a
will be required by the Company effective Octobe2@10. The adoption did not have a material eféecour financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Our exposure to market risk for changes in interats relates primarily to our investments in FRj@ranteed bank certificates of dep

The portfolio includes only FDIC guaranteed bankifieates of deposit with an active secondaryewale markets to ensure liquidity. We
no investments denominated in foreign country awies and, therefore, our investments are not stitgyoreign exchange risk.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly data for the years ended September 3 a80d 2010 was as follows:

Statement of Operations Data

Net revenue

Gross profil

Net income

Net income per share, Bas
Diluted

Statement of Operations Data

Net revenue

Gross profil

Net income (loss

Net income per share, Bas
Diluted

19

Quarter Ende:

December 3: March 31, June 30, September 3
2008 2009 2009 2009

$ 5,933,28 $5,232,60- $7,160,03' $ 6,618,90
2,014,200 1,818,15. 2,684,46! 2,354,109
217,48 131,04¢ 587,02( 2,849,53

$ 00z $ 0.01 $ 0.0t $ 0.24
0.0z 0.01 0.0¢ 0.2¢

Quarter Ende:

December 3: March 31, June 30, September 3
2009 2010 2010 2010

$ 4,942,66° $4,724,76! $6,778,19: $ 7,921,12
1,701,70¢ 1,733,371 2,603,19 3,099,25.

(159,68) (108,37() 629,01 819,99:
$ ©00)$ (0.0)$ 00F $ 0.07
(0.01) (0.01) 0.0% 0.07



Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingdrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Clearfield, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance shedf$eaffield, Inc. (a Minnesota corporation) as opteenber 30, 2010 and 2009, and
related statements of operations, shareholdgysity and cash flows for the years then endedes@&tinancial statements are the responsi
of the Company’s management. Our responsibilitg isxpress an opinion on these financial statesnegsed on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighaloUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaiasonable assurance about whether the finasteitdments are free of material mis-
statement. The Company is not required to haveweoe we engaged to perform, an audit of its mdecontrol over financial reporting. C
audit included consideration of internal controko¥inancial reporting as a basis for designingitaptbcedures that are appropriate in
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssin opinion on the effectiveness of the Compsripternal control over financ
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opiniédm audit also includes examining, on a testfasvidence supporting the amounts
disclosures in the financial statements, assegfiagaccounting principles used and significantnestés made by management, as we
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@na We believe that our audits provide a reabthbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Clearfield, Inc. as
September 30, 2010 and 2009, and the results apigsations and its cash flows for the years thauhed, in conformity with accounti
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica.

/s/Grant Thornton LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 18, 201
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CLEARFIELD, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

September 3 September 3

2010 2009
Assets
Current Asset
Cash and cash equivale $ 528571 $ 4,731,73
Shor-term investment 1,764,86! 2,108,56!
Accounts receivable, n 3,244,37! 2,723,41.
Inventories 1,512,301 1,153,86:
Other current assets 129,07¢ 180,63!
Total current asse 11,936,35 10,898,21
Property, plant and equipment, | 1,273,10 1,319,49:
Other Asset:
Long-term investment 3,236,16. 2,840,00!
Goodwill 2,570,51. 2,570,51.
Deferred taxe—long term 2,145,36. 2,231,99
Other 176,36¢ 176,36¢
Patents 23,09¢ -
Notes receivabl - 392,18t
Total other assets 8,151,50: 8,211,05!
Total Assets $ 21,360,96 $ 20,428,75
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long term de $ -$ 33,08!
Accounts payabl 1,188,26. 1,212,54:
Accrued compensatic 765,18 1,159,24!
Accrued expenses 82,86 88,13¢
Total current liabilities 2,036,30! 2,493,00!
Deferred ren 78,58¢ 87,94
Total Liabilities 2,114,89. 2,580,94
Shareholdel Equity
Undesignated shares, 4,999,500 authorized shareshares issued and outstanc - -
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 500 shares aatthmo shares issued or outstanc - -
Common stock, 50,000,000 shares authorized, $aftglue; 12,015,331 and 11,974,631 shares isuw
outstanding at September 30, 2010 and 2009, regelksc 120,15: 119,74¢
Additional paicin capital 52,589,03 52,372,13
Accumulated deficit (33,463,12) (34,644,07)
Total shareholders’ equity 19,246,06 17,847,81
Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity $ 21,360,96 $ 20,428,75

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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Net revenue
Cost of sale:
Gross profit
Operating expenst

Selling, general and administrati
Loss on disposal of assets

Income from operation
Interest incomt

Interest expens
Other income

Income before income tax

Income tax expense (benel
Net income

Net income per share Basic
Net income per share Diluted

Shares used in calculation of net income per sl

Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.

CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
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Year Ended Year Ended
September 3 September 3
2010 2009

$ 24,366,75 $ 24,944,83

15,229,22 16,073,81

9,137,53 8,871,02

8,014,12. 7,628,49!
> 31,14«
8,014,12. 7,659,63!

1,123,41 1,211,38:

143,46¢ 124,92:
(820) (5,676)
36,35 81,81
179,00( 201,05

1,302,41 1,412,43

121,45¢  (2,372,47)
$ 1,180,095 $ 3,784,90

$ 01C $ 0.32
$ 0.0¢ % 0.31

11,992,44 11,941,11
12,449,95 12,046,05




CLEARFILD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accumulatec

Additional other
Common stocl paid-in  Accumulater comprehensiv Total shareholders’
Shares  Amount  capital deficit Income (loss equity
Balance at September 30, 20C 11,938,13 $119,38: $52,166,21 $(38,428,98)$% (264,000 $ 13,592,61
Stoclk-based compensation expel - - 115,21¢ - - 115,21¢
Exercise of stock optior 36,50( 36E 90,70: - - 91,06:
Other comprehensive incor - - - - 264,00( 264,00(
Net income - - - 3,784,90! - 3,784,90!
Comprehensive incorr - - - - - 4,048,90!
Balance at September 30, 20(C 11,974,63 $119,74¢ $52,372,13 $(34,644,07) $ -$ 17,847,81
Stock-based compensation expel - 167,72 - - 167,72!
Exercise of stock optior 40,70( 407 49,17( - - 49,577
Net income - - - 1,180,95: - 1,180,95
Comprehensive income - - - - - 1,180,95
Balance at September 30, 201 12,015,33 $120,15{ $52,589,03 $(33,463,12) $ -$ 19,246,06

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash pravioke operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Loss on sale of asse
Stoclk-based compensation expel
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and accrued expet
Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equiprmr
Purchase of investmer
Proceeds from sale of equipmi
Patent addition
Sale of investmen
Proceeds from notes receiva

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie
Payment of lon-term deb
Proceeds from issuance of common si
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Increase in cash and cash equivals
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year fc

Interesi

Income Taxe

Year endec Year endec
September 3C  September 3(
2010 2009
$ 1,180,95: $ 3,784,90!
498,01« 434,49¢
86,62¢ (2,389,98)
- 31,14+
167,72¢ 115,21¢
(520,969 (189,96
(358,449 934,907
8,40¢ (24,63))
(432,97 (605,45¢)
629,34! 2,090,64.
(452,679 (180,93)
(2,479,46) (6,502,62)
1,04¢ -
(23,099 -
2,427,00! 4,962,00!
435,33¢ -
(91,857 (1,721,55)
(33,08 (62,12¢)
49,577 91,067
16,49¢ 28,94
553,98 398,02¢
4,731,73! 4,333,70!
$ 5,285,71! 4,731,73!
$ 82C 5,67¢
26,80z 17,51(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES

Description of Business: Clearfield, Inc., (the Company) is a manufacturkldroad range of standard and custom passiveectinity
products to customers throughout the United Stafésse products include fiber distribution systemmgtical components, Outside Pl
(“OSP”) cabinets, and fiber and copper cable as§embhat serve the communication service providecjuding Fiber-to-thérremise
(“FTTP"), large enterprise, and original equipmergnufacturers (“OEMs”) markets.

Revenue Recognition:Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, the product has been deliyéhe fee i
fixed, acceptance by the customer is reasonablineand collection is probable. This generallws upon shipment of product to
customer, but in some cases occurs when the praslyitked up by a customertarriers. The Company records freight revenubsdbic
customers as revenue and the related shipping amdlihg cost in cost of sales. Taxes collected foustomers and remitted to governme
authorities are presented on a net basis.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers all highly liquid investmentth original maturities of three months or lessbe cas
equivalents. Cash equivalents at September 300 20@ 2009 respectively consist entirely of shierta money market accounts. C
equivalents are stated at cost, which approxinfatesalue.

The Company maintains cash balances at severaicfalanstitutions, and at times, such balancegeddnsured limits. The Company has
experienced any losses in such accounts and bgliei® not exposed to any significant credit rigk cash. No cash was in foreign finan
institutions as of September 30, 2010.

Investments: The Company currently invests its excess cash fik bartificates of deposit (CB) that are fully insured by the Federal Def
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) with a term of not mntinan three years. C®Wwith original maturities of more than three manémne reported
held-to-maturity investments. These investmentSis are classified as held to maturity and are vahatembst which approximates fair val
The maturity dates of our CD’s at September 30020% as follows:

Less than one ye: $ 1,764,86!

1-3 years 3,236,16.

Total $ 5,001,03.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Accounts Receivable: Credit is extended based on the evaluation of tomex’s financial condition and, generally, collaterah requirec
Accounts outstanding longer than the contractugir@ant terms are considered past due. The Compateyndines its allowance by considel
a number of factors, including the length of timade receivables are past due, the Company’s prevass history, the customerturren
ability to pay its obligation to the Company, ame tcondition of the general economy and the inglessr whole. The Company writes
accounts receivable when they become uncollectiidgments subsequently received on such receivaesredited to the allowance
doubtful accounts. The following table illustratedances and activity for fiscal years 2010 an@920

Allowance Balance a Charged t
for Doubtful Beginning  Cost and Balance at
Accounts of Period  Expense: Deduction: End of Perio
September 30, 201 $ 91,11C $ 6,84C $ - $ 97,95(
September 30, 20( 69,38 24,08¢ 2,361 91,11(

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The financial statements include the following fiogl instruments: cash and cash equivalents,
term investments, accounts receivable, notes rablsvand accounts payable. Notes receivable igedaat fair value because it is adeque
secured by stock in the Company. All other finahitistruments approximate fair value because ofti@t-term nature of these assets.

Inventories: Inventories consist of finished goods, raw matsriahd work in process and are stated at the loWeverage cost (whi
approximates the first-in, firgiut method) or market. Inventory is valued usingtemial costs, labor charges, and allocated factogrhea
charges and consists of the following:

September 3 September 3

2010 2009
Raw materials $ 1,289,86' $ 873,43
Work-in-proces: 26,23: 23,03
Finished good 196,20 257,39.

$ 1512300$ 1,153,86.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment are recorded at &ghificant additions or improvements extendinge:
lives are capitalized, while repairs and mainteeaare charged to expense when incurred. Depreti&iprovided in amounts sufficient
relate the cost of assets to operations over #wimated useful lives. The straidimte method of depreciation is used for financieggparting
purposes and accelerated methods are used foutpages. Estimated useful lives of the assetssafellaws:

Years
Building 20
Equipment 3-7
Leasehold improvemen 7-10 or life of least
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shoftthe remaining term of the lease or estiméfedf the asset.
Property, plant and equipment consist of the foilmpat:

September 3 September 3

2010 2009
Land $ 56,19t $ 56,19:
Building 1,679,42. 1,679,42.
Manufacturing Equipmer 867,31. 719,16°
Office Equipmen 1,651,49 1,357,811
Leasehold Improvemen 200,25’ 195,38:

4,454,68. 4,007,98
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 3,181,57 2,688,48!

$ 1273,100$ 1,319,49.

Depreciation and amortization expel $ 498,01 $ 434,49¢

Goodwill: The Company analyzes its goodwill testing for innpent annually or at an interim period when everdsur or circumstanc
change that would more likely than not reduce tievalue of a reporting unit below its carrying @amt.

The Company assesses the valuation or potentiaiimpnt of its goodwill by utilizing a present valtechnique to measure fair value
estimating future cash flows. Determining markeluga using a discounted cash flow method requinesGompany to make signific:
estimates and assumptions, including léegn projections of cash flows, market conditiomsl @ppropriate discount rates. The Comp:
judgments are based on historical experience, rumarket trends, consultations with external véduaspecialists and other informati
While the Company believes that the estimates asdmaptions underlying the valuation methodologyrassonable, different estimates
assumptions could result in a different outcomee T@ompany generally develops these forecasts baisedcent sales data for exist
products, planned timing of new product launches] astimated expansion of the Fiber-To-Hremise market. Where available an
appropriate comparative market multiples are usecbtroborate the results of the present value otetiWe consider our net book value
market capitalization when we test for goodwill @mmment because we have consolidated our repouiig in prior years into the par
company, resulting in one reporting unit. If thergang amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fafue, the Company measures the pos
goodwill impairment loss based on an allocatiotthef estimate of fair value of the reporting unititbof the underlying assets and liabilitie:
the reporting unit, including any previously unrgo@ed intangible assets. The excess of the fdirevaf a reporting unit over the amot
assigned to its assets and liabilities is the ietbfiair value of goodwill. An impairment loss iognized to the extent that a reporting u
recorded goodwill exceeds the implied fair valuegobdwill. This test for the period ended Septem®@r 2010 resulted in no change
goodwill from the prior period.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: The Company assesses potential impairments tortglived assets or asset groups when there is evi
that events or changes in circumstances indicatettie carrying amount of an asset or asset grayprat be recovered. An impairment los
recognized when the carrying amount of the ltimgd asset or asset group is not recoverable aoeleels its fair value. The carrying amour
a longlived asset or asset group is not recoverable gktteeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flowsoteg to result from the use
eventual disposition of the asset or asset grouny. equired impairment loss is measured as the atroy which the carrying amount o
longHived asset or asset group exceeds its fair vatdeirecorded as a reduction in the carrying valuthe related asset or asset group ¢
charge to operating results. Intangible assets wvitafinite lives are tested annually for impairrhand in interim periods if certain events o«
indicating that the carrying value of the intangilslssets may be impaired. No impairment of ltiwed assets has occurred during any o
periods presented.

Income Taxes:The Company records income taxes in accordancethgthiability method of accounting. Deferred taxae recognized for t
estimated taxes ultimately payable or recoverableeth on enacted tax law. The Company establisheduation allowance to reduce
deferred tax asset to an amount that is more litkey not to be realizable. Changes in tax ratesedlected in the tax provision as they occur.

In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes weognize the financial statement benefit of a tagifmmn only after determining that t
relevant tax authority would more likely than noistin the position following an audit. For tax piosis meeting the more likely than |
threshold, the amount recognized in the finandetiesnents is the largest benefit that has a gréader 50 percent likelihood of being reali
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax atitih. The Company recognizes interest and persakiecrued on any unrecognized
benefits as a component of income tax expense.

Stock-Based Compensation We measure and recognize compensation expensdl fsiockbased payments at fair value over the reqt
service period. We use the Black-Scholes optiorimpyi model to determine the weighted average failue of options. Equitypase:
compensation expense is included in selling, gérerd administrative expenses. The determinatioffianfvalue of stockased payme
awards on the date of grant using an oppadoing model is affected by our stock price aslvesl by assumptions regarding a numbe
subjective variables. These variables include,dvatnot limited to, the expected stock price viitgtover the term of the awards, and ac
and projected employee stock option exercise bemavi

The expected terms of the options are based oma@hs of historical and expected future emplogeercise behavior. The ridkee interes
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rates at tleecd@rant with maturity dates approximately egoahe expected life at grant date. Volatilit
based on historical and expected future volatdftghe Companys stock. The Company has not historically issugddividends and does r
expect to in the future. Forfeitures are estimatietthe time of the grant and revised, if necessargubsequent periods if actual forfeitures d
from estimates. The Company uses a forfeitureabi®%.

The weighted average fair value of options gramtedng for the year ended September 30, 2010 a0 20e $1.75 and $0.44. If fact

change and we employ different assumptions in #terchination of the fair value of grants in futyreriods, the related compensation exp
that we record may differ significantly from whaéwave recorded in the current periods.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Net Income Per Share:Basic and diluted net income per share is compbtedlividing net income by the weighted average neimdt
common shares outstanding.

Common stock options to purchase 1,138,500 and700%hares of common stock with a weighted aveexgecise price of $1.40 and $1
were outstanding during the years ended Septenfh@03.0 and 2009.

At September 30, 2010 and at September 30, 2008 there stock options with exercise prices gretiten the average market price of
common shares of the period.

Weighted average common share outstanding foreéhesyended September 30, 2010 and 2009 were awdoll

Year ended September { 2010 2009
Numerator for basic net incon $ 1,180,95. $ 3,784,90
Denominator for basic net income per st—weighted average shar 11,942,44 11,941,11
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options 457,50¢ 104,94:
Denominator for diluted net income per sh- adjusted weighted average she 12,449,95  12,046,05

Accumulated Other Comprehensive LossComprehensive income consists of net income aner athins and losses affecting shareholders
equity that, under generally accepted accountimgciples are excluded from net income. For the Camyp such items consist primarily
unrealized gains and losses on marketable equitystments. The changes in the components of otrprehensive income (loss)
composed of the valuation allowance associated thighAuction Rate Securities (ARS) the company leld was subsequently able to
back to the broker, see the investments policy uNa¢e A to the financial statements.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States of
America requires management to make estimatesssuirgtions that affect the reported amounts otaissel liabilities, related revenues and
expenses and disclosure about contingent asset@hitities at the date of the financial statensenfctual results may differ from these
estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

In September 2006, the FASB issued new standardfaiorvalue measurements as codified in ASC &R0-This standard establishe
framework for measuring fair value in generally gqted accounting principles clarifies the defimitiof fair value within that framework a
expands disclosures about the use of fair valuesarement. This standard emphasizes that fair vialiee markebased measurement,
opposed to a transacti@pecific measurement. We adopted this standarteabeéginning of fiscal 2009 for financial assetd &abilities ant
the adoption did not have a material impact on foancial statements. We will adopt this standardha beginning of fiscal 2010 for non-
financial assets and liabilities and do not exjitetct have a material effect on our financial stagats.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

In June 2009, the FASB issued new standards ombtarinterest entities (VIE), as codified in 810- which requires an entity to perforr
gualitative analysis to determine whether the @mige’s variable interest gives it a controlling finardiaterest in a VIE. This analy:
identifies a primary beneficiary of a VIE as theignthat has both of the following characteristigsthe power to direct the activities of a \
that most significantly impact the entisyeconomic performance and ii) the obligation teaab losses or receive benefits from the entity
could potentially be significant to the VIE. The@pany is required to complete ongoing reassessmétitie primary beneficiary of a VIE a
will be required by the Company effective Octobe2010. The Company does not expect it to havetarmbeffect on its financial statemer

NOTE B — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of the outstanding démtiiscal 2010 the company made the final paymentsts capital lease. As of Septen
30, 2010 the Company has no long term liabilithes of September 30, 2009 the Company had long liebilities totaling $33,081.

NOTE C — COMMITMENTS AND FACILITIES

Plymouth Facility: The Company leases office and manufacturingifesilin Plymouth, MN for its ongoing operationhi3 operating lea:
expires November 30, 2013 The Company also leasgsus pieces of office equipment. For the yeadednSeptember 30, 2010 and 2
rent and common area expense was $337,000 ando$B2i&spectively. The following is a schedule gpragimate minimum rent payme
under the operating lease for its Plymouth facility

Year ending September . Operating least
2011 262,34(

2012 243,64

2013 249,48(

2014 42,75¢

Total minimum lease paymer $ 792,22:

Aberdeen Facility: On August 20, 2009 the Company entered into agetiated lease agreement withtéhant for its Aberdeen, Sol
Dakota facility. The lease is month to month. Téeaint is in arrears but making partial rent paysieftte Company continues to actively ¢
additional tenants and is evaluating other usethiofacility.
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NOTE D — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Board of Directors may, by resolution, estdbfiom the undesignated shares different classeergs of shares and may fix the rele
rights and preferences of shares in any classrimss@ he Company is authorized to issue 500 stadrpeeferred stock and 50,000,000 shart
common stock at $.01 par value. The Company hasswéd any shares of preferred stock.

Stock-Based CompensationThe Company’s stockased compensation plans are administered by thg€usation Committee of the Bo
of Directors, which selects persons to receive devand determines the number of shares subjecidio @vard and the terms, conditic
performance measures and other provisions of tlaedaw

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricilnglehto estimate fair value of stoblased awards with the following weighted ave
assumptions:

Year ended September 2010 2009
Expected volatility 67% 43%
Expected life (in years S5year 5 year
Expected dividend 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rat 208% 2.7%

The Company had two stock option plans which aexlws an incentive for directors, officers, andeo#imployees. The directerplan wa
terminated in February of 2010 and 67,500 authdrizet unissued shares were removed from the platio@® are generally granted at
market values determined on the date of grant &sting normally occurs over a three to fivgar period. The maximum contractual ter
normally six years. However, options granted tecliors have a one year vesting period and a six g@#ractual term. Shares issued L
exercise of a stock option are new shares as ogptséreasury shares. The employee plan has 331ksbafes available for issue as
September 30, 2010. On August 19, 2010 13,000i¢e=xtrstock grants were issued to employees aica pf $2.58 per share, they vest ov
three year period. As of September 30, 2010, $&27(§ total unrecognized compensation expense tovested awards is expected tc
recognized over a weighted average period of apmately 2.19 years. The Company recorded relatedpemsation expense for the ye
ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 of $167,725HE 2D8, respectively.

Option transactions under these plans during the geded September 30, 2010 and 2009 are summasZetlows:

Weighted

average  Weighted

Number exercise average

of share price fair value
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 386,70 $ 1.37

Grantec 678,50( 1.0 % 0.4¢
Cancelled or Forfeite (29,000 2.1z
Exercised (36,500 2.4¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 999,70( 1.0¢

Grantec 233,00( 28t $ 1.7¢
Cancelled or Forfeite (53,500 1.34
Exercised (40,700 1.2z
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 1,138,500 $ 1.4C
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NOTE D — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY - Continued

The number of options exercisable under the Optilass were:

Weighted
average
exercise

Year ende Exercisabl price
September 30, 201 393,34¢ $ 1.0¢
September 30, 20C 148,54( $ 1.2¢

The following table summarizes information concagioptions currently outstanding at:
Weighted Weighted  Aggregate
Number average remaining average intrinsic

Year Endec outstandin contractual life exercise pric value
September 30, 201 1,138,501 6.11 years: $ 1.4C $1,589,44.
September 30, 20( 999,70( 6.63 year: $ 1.0¢ $1,080,39

Employee Stock Purchase PlanThe Clearfield Corporation 2010 Employee Stock Rase Plan (“Stock Plan"allows participatin
employees to purchase shares of the Compaoginmon stock at a discount through payroll dédnst The Stock Plan is available to
employees subject to certain eligibility requirentserTerms of the Stock Plan provide that particgigpemployees may purchase the Company’
common stock on a voluntary after tax basis. Epg®s may purchase the Compangdmmon stock at a price that is no less tharother of
85% of the fair market value of one share of comrstmtk at the beginning or end of each stock pweheriod or phase. The Stock Ple
carried out in sixnonth phases, with phases beginning on July 1 andaly 1 of each calendar year. As of Septembe2@®0), the Compal
has withheld approximately $17,500 from employeadigpating in the phase that began on July 102@& September 30, 2010, all 300,
shares of common stock were available for futureclpases under the Stock Plan, as the plan willcontplete a sixnonth phase un
December 21, 2010.

NOTE E — SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

Pursuant to the Shareholder Rights Plan each sfiar@mmon stock has attached to it a right, andheshare of common stock issued in
future will have a right attached until the riglespire or are redeemed. Upon the occurrence ¢&inechange in control events, each r
entitles the holder to purchase one twedredth of a share of Series B Junior Prefermtidipating Share, at an exercise price of $8(
share, subject to adjustment. The rights expiretllovember 10, 2010 and may be redeemed by the @oyrgt a price of $.001 per right pi
to the time they become exercisable.
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NOTE F — INCOME TAXES

Deferred taxes recognize the impact of tempordfferdinces between the amounts of the assets drititiés recorded for financial statem
purposes and such amount measured in accordanbetaxitlaws. Realization of net operating loss ycdarward and other deferred -
temporary differences are contingent upon futuxalite earnings. The Comparydeferred tax asset was reviewed for expecteizattdr
using a “more likely than notapproach as required by ASC 740 by assessing th#able positive and negative factors surrounditz
recoverability. Accordingly, the Company recordetlll valuation allowance at September 30, 20B8r the year ended September 30, 2
the Company reduced the portion of the valuatibmwance related to our net operating loss cariyérds (NOLS) and other deferred |
assets that we believe are more likely than nbeteealized based upon estimates of future taxabtene. The Company reversed a portic
its valuation allowance in consideration of all ésale positive and negative evidence, including bistorical operating results, curr
financial condition, and potential future taxablfeame. The reduction in the valuation allowance ther year ended September 30, -
resulted in a non-cash income tax benefit of apprately $2.5 million.

Our future potential taxable income was evaluategel primarily on anticipated operating resultsfiecal years 2011 through 2013.

determined that projecting operating results bey2®t3 involves substantial uncertainty and we disted forecasts beyond 2013 as a ba:
support our deferred tax assets. Based upon tlessasent of all available evidence, the Company neitase additional valuation allowa
for the year ended September 30, 2010 in an aniouwritich the tax benefit generated offsets the ptavision to be realized from current y
estimated taxable income. The Company continuesdord a valuation allowance of approximately $lfillion, of which $213,000 is sht
term and $9,750,000 is lorigrm, against its remaining deferred tax assets.ddmpany will continue to assess annually, oméerim basis

circumstances warrant, the assumptions used tondet the amount of our valuation allowance and radjyst the valuation allowance
future periods based on changes in assumptionstiofizged future income and other factors. If thiiation allowance is reduced, we wa
record an income tax benefit in the period the atdun allowance is reduced. If the valuation allogg s increased, we would record additi
income tax expense.
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NOTE F — INCOME TAXES - continued
Significant components of deferred income tax asaetl liabilities are as follows at:

September 3 September 3

2010 2009
Current deferred income tax assets (liabiliti

Inventories $ 133,18: $ 118,24
Accrued expenses and reser 120,01° 109,39:
Prepaid expenst (40,697 (42,169
212,50: 185,47:
Valuation allowance (212,507) (185,47)
Net current deferred tax asset $ -3 -

Long-term deferred income tax assets (liabiliti¢
Intangibles $ 23,45% $ 24,90
Property and equipment depreciat 295,49¢ 258,32!
Net operating loss carry forwards and cre 11,833,66 11,257,97
Stock based compensati 32,50: 15,87:
Accrued expenses and reser 28,67: 31,62«
Goodwill (318,651) (232,010
11,895,13 11,356,68
Valuation allowanct (9,749,77)  (9,124,69)
Net long-term deferred tax asset $ 2,145,36. $ 2,231,99

As of September 30, 2010, the Company had U.Srdéded state net operating loss (NOL) carry fonsaof approximately $32,289,000
$23,033,000 respectively which expire in fiscalrge2020 to 2028. The Company completed an IntdRegknue Code Section 382 analys
the loss carry-forwards in 2009 and determined thanall of the company’s loss carfgrwards are utilizable and not restricted undestige
382.
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NOTE F — INCOME TAXES - continued

The following is a reconciliation of the federahsttory income tax rate to the consolidated eféectax rate as a percent of pee-income fa
the following periods ended:

September 31 September 3

2010 2009
Federal statutory ra 34% 34%
State income taxe 2% 2%
Permanent difference 5% 3%
Change in state tax rate effect on defer -% 55%
Change in valuation allowan (32%) (262%)
Tax rate 9% (16&%)

Components of the income tax expense (benefitaarfellows for the periods ended:

September 3 September 3

2010 2009

Current:
Federal $ 17,097 $ 19,59¢
State 15,50¢ 6,824
32,60¢ 26,42:

Deferred:
Federal 998,16: (355,83)
State (1,563,64)  1,791,57
(565,48Y)  1,435,74!
Valuation allowanct 654,33 (3,834,63)
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 121,45¢ $ (2,372,47)

The Company is required to recognize the finansfatement benefit of a tax position only after dateing that the relevant tax autho
would more likely than not sustain the positionldeling an audit. For tax positions meeting the midtely than not threshold, the amou
recognized in the financial statements is the trdenefit that has a greater than 50 percentilidetl of being realized upon ultim
settlement with the relevant tax authority. The @any applies the interpretation to all tax possidor which the statute of limitatio
remained open. The Company had no liability foreeognized tax benefits. The Company did not recgany interest or penalties during
years ended September 30, 2010 or 2

The Company is subject to income taxes in the té&eral jurisdiction, and various state jurisdioo Tax regulations within each jurisdict
are subject to the interpretation of the related léavs and regulations and require significant jnegt to apply. With few exceptions,
Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, statklocal, income tax examinations by tax authewifor fiscal years ending prior 1994. °
Company changed its fiscal year in 2007 to Septedbe
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NOTE G — CONCENTRATIONS

Suppliers: The Company purchases critical components formpooducts, including injected molded parts andnemors from third partie
some of whom are single- or limitesburce suppliers. If any of our suppliers are uadbl ship critical components, we may be unab
manufacture and ship products to our distributorsustomers. If the price of these components aswe for any reason, or if these supplier
unable or unwilling to deliver, we may have to fiadother source, which could result in interrupgioncreased costs, delays, loss of sale
quality control problems.

Customers: Two customers, Power & Telephone Supply CompanyMm8 Systems Corporation, comprised approximat&ipand 41% ¢
total sales for the periods ended September 3@ a6d September 30, 2009, respectively. Power &pheine Supply Company is a distribi
and it accounted for 20% and 33% of revenue forctireesponding respective periods. MTS Systems @ation is an end use customer ai
accounted for 8% and 8% of revenues for the cooredipg respective periods. MTS Systems Corporgtiarthases our product through
standard form of purchase order with pricing estalbld by a schedule that is in effect from July2@08 through June 30, 2011. Powe
Telephone Supply Company purchases our produadihrds standard form of purchase order.

NOTE H — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company maintains a contributory 401(k) prsffiaring benefit plan covering all employees. TlenBany matches 50% of the first 6%
the employee’s salary that was contributed by timpleyee to the plan. The Compasycontributions under this plan were $175,973
$170,950 for the years ended September 30, 2018epgmber 30, 2009

NOTE | — CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

On June 28, 2007, we sold all of our interest inladian subsidiary to an entity controlled by AKil Jain, our former chief executive offic
on terms deemed by the independent directors faiband reasonable to the Company. The purchase pf $500,000 was payable over -

years and was fully secured by pledges of Cledrfigic. stock and Dr. J¢s payments under his separation agreement, asagdily
guarantee from Dr. Jain. The note was paid inJuile 23, 2010 in the amount of $400,000.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management carried out an evaluatinder the supervision and with the participatidrthe Companys Chief Executiv
Officer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officdrtbe effectiveness of the design and operatiothefCompanys disclosure controls a
procedures (as such term is defined in Rule I@&) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded) as of September 30, 2010. E
upon that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executdfficer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officeoncluded that the Compasy’
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaithitaining an adequate system of internal comvel financial reporting, as such terr
defined in Rule 13d5(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision avith the participation of our management, inchgdiour Chie
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officave conducted an evaluation of the effectivenesswf internal control over financ
reporting based on the framework limternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifnthe
Treadway Commission. Based on that evaluation, gemant concluded that, as of September 30, 20X0internal control over financi
reporting was effective.

This annual report does not include an attestatmort of the Company’ registered public accounting firm regarding in&rcontrol ove
financial reporting. Management’s report was ndijsct to attestation by the Compasykegistered public accounting firm pursuant t@sud
the Securities and Exchange Commission that peh@i€Company to provide only management’s repottiismannual report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

No changes in the Compé’s internal control over financial reporting occuriduring the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010t thave materiall
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, the Company’s internal control over finangigborting.

ITEM O9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE.

Information required by Item 10 concerning the dioes and executive officers of the Company ang@a@te governance is incorporated he
by reference to Comparg/proxy statement for its 2011 Annual Meeting o&@holders, which will be filed with the Securitisd Exchanc
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 129after the end of the fiscal year for which tlgiport is filed.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by Item 11 is incorporateerein by reference to Compasyproxy statement for its 2011 Annual Meetin(
Shareholders, which will be filed with the Secastiand Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulaisnaithin 120 days after the end of
fiscal year for which this report is filed.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by Item 12 is incorporateerein by reference to Compasyproxy statement for its 2011 Annual Meetin(
Shareholders, which will be filed with the Secerdtiand Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulafiénadthin 120 days after the end of
fiscal year for which this report is filed.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is incorporateerein by reference to Compasyproxy statement for its 2011 Annual Meetin(
Shareholders, which will be filed with the Secedtiand Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulatiénwlithin 120 days after the close
the fiscal year for which this report is filed.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is incorporateerein by reference to Compasyproxy statement for its 2010 Annual Meetin¢
Shareholders, which will be filed with the Secastiand Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulaisnaithin 120 days after the end of
fiscal year for which this report is filed.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The financial statements of Clearfield, Inc. atediherewith under ltem 8:

Exhibits. See Exhibit Index.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

[e=Y

Incorporated
Number Description by Reference to
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation, of APA Optit¢sc.|Exhibit 3.1 to Registrarg’ Quarterly Report on For
(n/k/a Clearfield, Inc.) dated November 3, 1983 |10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000
Articles of Amendment dated December 9, 1983,
30, 1987, March 22, 1989, September 14, 1994
August 17, 2000
3.1(a) Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporati| Exhibit 3.1 to Registrand’ Quarterly Report on For,
dated August 25, 2004 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004
3.2 Bylaws, as amended and restated effective Febrig| Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Forf
1999 of Clearfield, Inc. (f/k/a APA Optics, Inc.) KSB for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999
4.1 Share Rights Agreement dated October 23, 2000 8 Exhibit 1 to the Registration Statement on Form
between the Registrant and Wells Fargo Bfiled November 8, 2000
Minnesota NA as Rights Agent
10.1 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors Exhibit 10.3a to Registrarst’ Annual Report on For
10-KSB for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1994
*10.2 1997 Stock Compensation Plan Annex 1 to the Definitive Proxy Statement for
Registrants Annual Meeting of Shareholders held
August 15, 2001 as filed on July 19, 2001
*10.3 Insurance agreement by and between the Registnal Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Fdtfi
Anil K. Jain K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1990
*10.4 Form of Agreement regarding Indemnification |Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Fatf:
Directors and Officers with Messrs. Jain, OIgK for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002
Ringstad, Roth, Von Wald and Zuckerman
10.5 Lease Agreement dated May 31, 2006 between |Exhibit 10.14 to Registrarg’ Annual Report on For
Lake Realty, LLC and Clearfield, Inc. 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.
*10.6 2007 Stock Compensation Plan, as amended Exhibit 10.15 to Registrarg’Registration Statements

Form S-8 (SEC File Nos. 333-136828 and 333-1515

04)
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Incorporated

Number Description by Reference to

10.7 Amended and Restated Agreement Regar Exhibit 10.16 to Registrant’'s Current Report on 8aK
Employment/Compensation Upon Change In Coidated June 29, 2007
dated September 15, 2005 by and between
Enterprises, Inc. and Anil K. Jain

10.8 Supplemental Separation Agreement dated JungExhibit 10.17 to Registrant’s Current Report on 8K
2007 by and between APA Enterprises, Inc. and Kn| dated June 29, 2007
Jain

10.9 Promissory Note dated June 28, 2007 by Phot¢Exhibit 10.19 to Registrant's Current Report on 8a
International, Inc. as maker and APA Enterprise{dated June 29, 2007
holder in the principal sum of $500,000

10.10 Unconditional and Continuing Guaranty dated Jung Exhibit 10.20 to Registrant’s Current Report on 3dK
2007 by Anil K. Jain in favor of APA Enterprisescl |dated June 29, 2007

10.11 Stock Pledge Agreement dated June 28, 2007 bykA Exhibit 10.21 to Registrant’s Current Report on 84K
Jain in favor of APA Enterprises, Inc. dated June 29, 2007

10.12 Separation Payments Pledge Agreement dated Jui Exhibit 10.22 to Registrant’s Current Report on 8aK
2007 by and between Anil K. Jain and APA Enters;j| dated June 29, 2007
Inc.

10.13 Agreement to Provide Additional Collateral datedhe] Exhibit 10.23 to Registrant’'s Current Report on 8aK
28, 2007 by and between Anil K. Jain and Adated June 29, 2007
Enterprises, Inc.

10.14 Non-Compete Agreement dated June 28, 2007 by| Exhibit 10.24 to Registrant's Current Report on 8
among others, Anil K. Jain, and APA Enterprises, In|dated June 29, 2007

10.15 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 200|Exhibit 10.26 to Registrant's Current Report on 8
and between Clearfield, Inc. and Cheryl P. Beranek.|dated December 16, 2008

10.16 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 200|Exhibit 10.27 to Registrant's Current Report on 8
and between Clearfield, Inc. and John P. Hill. dated December 16, 2008

10.17 Clearfield, Inc. 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plar Exhibit 10.28 to Registrarg’Registration Statement

Form S-8 (SEC File Nos. 333-166495)

23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP *

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer (princip/**
executive officer) Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) Hbd-
14(a) of the Exchange Act

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer (princip|**

financial officer) Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) did-

14(a) of the Exchange Act
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Number

Description

Incorporated
by Reference to

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Pripal
Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350

* Indicates a management contract or compengatan or arrangement.

** Indicates exhibit filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regidthas duly caused this repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theéoeduly authorized.

Clearfield, Inc.

Date: November 18, 2010 By /s/ Cheryl P. Berane
Cheryl P. Berane
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed béipwhe following persons
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.
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Each person whose signature appears below herelsyittbes and appoints Cheryl P. Beranek and B@icBlackey, and each of them, as
true and lawful attorney-ifact and agent, with full power of substitution,dign on his behalf, individually and in each cafyastated belov
all amendments to this Form X0and to file the same, with all exhibits theretadaany other documents in connection therewithh i
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting uaith &torneys-irfact and agents full power and authority to do padform each and eve
act and thing requisite and necessary to be doaedrabout the premises, as fully and to all irtemtd purposes as each might or could
person, hereby ratifying and confirming each aat #aid attorneys-in-fact and agents may lawfutlyod cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Signature: Title Date

/s/ Cheryl P. Berane President, Chief Executive Officer and Dire November 18, 201
Cheryl P. Beranek (principal executive officer )

/sl Bruce G. Blacke Chief Financial Officer (principal financial a November 18, 201
Bruce G. Blackey accounting officer)

/s/ Ronald G. Roth Director November 18, 201
Ronald G. Roth

/s/ John G. Reddan Director November 18, 201
John G. Reddan

/s/ Stephen L. Zuckerman M.D. Director November 18, 201
Stephen L. Zuckerman

/s/ Donald R. Hayward Director November 18, 201
Donald R. Hayward

/s/ Charles N. Hayssen Director November 18, 201

Charles N. Hayssen
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountinfirm

We have issued our report dated November 18, 28ddhmpanying the financial statements includechéAnnua

Report of Clearfield, Inc. on Form K-for the year ended September 30, 2010. We hexnsent to tr

incorporation by reference of said report in th@iBteation Statements of Clearfield, Inc. on Foi®a8 (File No. 333-
74214, effective November 30, 2001; File No. 3353a@. effective August 25, 2000; File No. 338488, effectiv

August 25, 2000; File No. 333-44486, effective Asig25, 2000; File No. 33336828, effective August 23, 2006; |

No. 333151504, effective June 6, 2008 and File No. 338495, effective May 4, 2010) and on Form8 $-ile No

333-33968, effective April 4, 2004; File No. 333988, effective April 4, 2004 and File No. 333104, effectiv

August 18, 2000).

/s/Grant Thornton LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 18, 2010



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

[, Cheryl P. Beranek, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Clearfield, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesoatiain any untrue statement of a material facmoit tc
state a material fact necessary to make the statsmeade, in light of the circumstances under wisigbt
statements were made, not misleading with respeabiet period covered by this annual rep

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this aial
report, fairly represent in all material respetts financial condition, results of operations aadicflows o
the registrant as of, and for, the periods preseint¢his annual repor

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifile establishing and maintaining disclos
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangerAit#s 13a-15(e) and 18d(e)) and internal control o\
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actéaul3-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proce
to be designed under our supervision, to ensurentiagerial information relating to the registri
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevkm to us by others within those entit
particularly during the period in which this annogport is being prepare

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over final
reporting to be designed under our supervisionprovide reasonable assurance regarding
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacat of financial statements for external purpost
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preseén
this report our conclusions about the effectivertgghe disclosure controls and procedures, ake
end of the period covered by this report basedush svaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regid's internal control financial reporting tl
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgedrter (the registrarst’fourth fiscal quarter in tl
case of an annual report) that has materially &dtecor is reasonably likely to materially affettte
registran’s control over financial reportin

The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluatiol
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofrdggstrants
board of directors (or persons performing the egjeint functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal cont
over financial reporting which are reasonably hkéb adversely affect the registramtability tc
record, process, summarize and report financiakmétion; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who ha
significant role in the registre’s internal controls over financial reportir

November 18, 201

[s/ Cheryl P. Berane
Cheryl P. Berane

Chief Executive Office
(Principal executive officel




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Bruce G. Blackey, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Clearfield, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesamtain any untrue statement of a material facinit tc
state a material fact necessary to make the statsmeade, in light of the circumstances under wisigbt
statements were made, not misleading with respebiet period covered by this annual rep

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this asmil
report, fairly represent in all material respetts financial condition, results of operations aadtcflows o
the registrant as of, and for, the periods preseint¢his annual repor

The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclos
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangerAit#s 13a-15(e) and 18d(e)) and internal control o\
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul 3-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proce
to be designed under our supervision, to ensurentiadéerial information relating to the registri
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevim to us by others within those entit
particularly during the period in which this annogport is being prepare

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over final
reporting to be designed under our supervisionprovide reasonable assurance regarding
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacat of financial statements for external purposi
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presen
this report our conclusions about the effectivertgghe disclosure controls and procedures, ake
end of the period covered by this report basedush gvaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsainternal control financial reporting tl
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrargt’fourth fiscal quarter in tl
case of an annual report) that has materially &dtecor is reasonably likely to materially affettte
registran’s control over financial reportin

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluatiol
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofréggstrants
board of directors (or persons performing the egjent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes@e the design or operation of internal cont
over financial reporting which are reasonably kkéb adversely affect the registramtability tc
record, process, summarize and report financiakmétion; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who ha
significant role in the registre’s internal controls over financial reportir

November 18, 201

[sl Bruce G. Blacke
Bruce G. Blacke!

Chief Financial Office
(principal financial officer’




Date:

Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.CO1BA&t:
The accompanying Annual Report on Forn-K for the period ended September 30, 2010 fully gl
with the requirements of Sections 13(a) or 15(dhefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934;

The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctiodianc
results of operations of the Compa

November 18, 201

/s/ Cheryl P. Berane
Cheryl P. Berane
Chief Executive Office

/s/ Bruce G. Blacke
Bruce G. Blacke
Chief Financial Office!




